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Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.-W.
Washington, DC 20549

Re:  AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on October 20, 2003 by
Marlene Seybold against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A (the

“Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make this
filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Sincerely,

A fedl

Paul M. Miller

Enclosure
CC:. Shaswat Das /PQ@CESSED
Domenick Pugliese ;; DEC 08 2003
THOMSON
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APPENDIX A
AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
- Name Registration CIK No.
‘§ No.
AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc. 811-00126 0000029292
AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc. 811-09329 0001085421
AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc. 811-09687 0001090504
AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc. 811-00204 | 0000019614
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc. 811-07707 0001018368
The AllianceBernstein Portfolios 811-05088 | 0000812015
- AllianceBermnstein Growth Fund
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series, Inc. 811-09176 | 0001062417
- Biotechnology Portfolio
- Technology Portfolio
- Premier Portfolio
AllianceBernsteinTrust 811-10221 0001129870
- AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund
- AllianceBernstein International Value Fund
AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-06730 | 0000889508
AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc. 811-01716 0000081443
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 | 0000350181
AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc. 811-07916 | 0000910036
AllianceBernstein Balanced Shares, Inc. 811-00134 0000069752
AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series, Inc. 811-21081 | 0001172221
- U.S. Large Cap Portfolio
AllianceBernstein All Asia Investment Fund, Inc. 811-08776 0000930438
AllianceBernstein Greater China 97 Fund, Inc. 811-08201 0001038457
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc. 811-08527 0001050658
AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc. 811-01415 | 0000095669
AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc. 811-06028 0000859605
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc. 811-08426 0000920701
AllianceBernstein Americas Government Income Trust, Inc. 811-06554 0000883676
AllianceBernstein Bond Fund, Inc. 811-02383 0000003794
- Corporate Bond Portfolio
- Quality Bond Portfolio
- U.S. Government Portfolio
AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc. 8§11-08188 | 0000915845
AllianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc. 811-07391 0001002718
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc. 811-09160 0001029843
AllianceBernstein Multi-Market Strategy Fund, Inc. 811-06251 0000873067




Sanford C. Bernstein Fund, Inc.

- Short Duration Portfolio

- Intermediate California Municipal Portfolio

- Intermediate Diversified Municipal Portfolio
- Intermediate New York Municipal Portfolio

811-05555

0000832808

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund, Inc.
- National Porfolio

- California Portfolio

- Insured California Portfolio

- Insured National Portfolio

- New York Portfolio

811-04791

0000798737

AllianceBernstein Municipal Income Fund II
- Arizona Portfolio

- Florida Portfolio

- Massachusetts Portfolio

- Michigan Portfolio

- Minnesota Portfolio

- New Jersey Portfolio

- Ohio Portfolio

- Pennsylvania Portfolio

- Virginia Portfolio

811-07618

0000899774




APPENDIX B

Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Name CIK No. Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 | 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 | 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager

00250.0073 #437370




UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK.

X .

MARLENE SEYBOLD, on behalf of Herself and All
Others Similarly Situated,

)
)
) Civil Action No.
Plaintiff, )
) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Vs, )
)  JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH & INCOME FUND, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HEALTH CARE FUND, - )
ALLJANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, ) '
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH FUND, ) o -
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE ) | SR
INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ) | o Do
GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT ) wool LT
INVESTOR SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY PORTFOLIO, ) o o I
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, ) ; g =3
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN PREMIER GROWTH FUND, ) ‘ < L2
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR SERIES ) S5
TECHNOLOGY PORT, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN e

)
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN QUASAR )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR )
SERIES PREMIER PORT, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
UTILITY INCOME FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
BALANCED SHARES, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
* DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
GLOBAL VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, - )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL BSTATE )
"INVESTMENT FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
UTILITY INCOME FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
VALUE FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BLENDED )
STYLE SERIES - U.S. LARGE CAP PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ALL-ASIA INVESTMENT )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL VALUE )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GREATER CHINA ‘97 )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL )
PREMIER GROWTH FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
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INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, | )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL SMALLCAP )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE FUND, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE )
PRIVATIZATION FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
'SELECT INVESTOR SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY )
PORT, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR )
SERIES PREMIER PORT, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS GOVERNMENT )
INCOME TRUST, ALLIANCEBERNSTEINBOND )
FUND CORPORATE BOND PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND QUALITY )
BOND PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND )
FUND U.S. GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET DEBT )
FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL STRATEGIC )
INCOME TRUST, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH )
YIELD FUND, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI- )
MARKET STRATEGY TRUST, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SHORT DURATION, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE )
CALIFORNIA MUNI PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE )
DIVERSIFIED MUNI PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE NEW )
YORK MUNI PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNI INCOME FUND NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
ARIZONA PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNI INCOME FUND CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
INSURED NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNT INCOME FUND MASSACHUSETTS )
PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME )
FUND MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNI INCOME FUND NEW JERSEY PORTFOLIO, = )
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- INVESTMENT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN

ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND NEW
YORK PORTFOLIO, ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND OHIO PORTFOLIO,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
PENNSYLVANIA PORTFOLIO, :
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, COLLEGEBOUNDFUND M
(collectively known as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
FUNDS""); ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GROWTH &
INCOME FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
HEALTH CARE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
DISCIPLINED VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MID-CAP GROWTH FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE

GROWTH FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES BIOTECHNOLOGY -
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SMALL
CAP VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
PREMIER GROWTH FUND INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR SERIES
TECHNOLOGY PORT, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
QUASAR FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
TECHNOLOGY FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES PREMIER PORT, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BALANCED SHARES,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN DISCIPLINED VALUE
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL
VALUER FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, INC,,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN REAL ESTATE
INVESTMENT FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
SMALL CAP VALUE FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN UTILITY INCOME FUND,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN VALUE FUND, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BLENDED STYLE SERIES -
U.S. LARGE CAP PORTFOLJO, INC., '
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN ALL-ASJA INVESTMENT
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL
VALUE FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
GREATER CHINA ‘97 FUND, INC.,
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ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERNATIONAL PREMIER )
GROWTH FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
INTERNATIONAL VALUE FUND, INC,, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL SMALL CAP )
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN NEW EUROPE )
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN WORLDWIDE )
PRIVATIZATION FUND, INC,, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR SERIES )
BIOTECHNOLOGY PORT, INC,, )
ALLJIANCEBERNSTEIN SELECT INVESTOR SERIES )
PREMIER PORT, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
SELECT INVESTOR SERIES TECHNOLOGY PORT, )
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN AMERICAS )
GOVERNMENT INCOME TRUST, INC,, )
- ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND CORPORATE )
BOND PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
BOND FUND QUALITY BOND PORTFOLIO, INC., )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN BOND FUND U.S. )
GOVERNMENT PORTFOLIO, INC,, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN EMERGING MARKET DEBT )
FUND, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN GLOBAL );
. STRATEGIC INCOME TRUST, INC., )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN HIGH YIELD FUND, INC )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MULTI-MARKET , )
STRATEGY TRUST, INC., ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN )
SHORT DURATION, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
INTERMEDIATE CALIFORNIA MUNI PORTFCLIO, )
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN INTERMEDIATE )
DIVERSIFIED MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC,, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEDN INTERMEDIATE NEW )
YORK MUNI PORTFOLIO, INC., - )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
NATIONAL PORTFOLIO, INC., )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND . )
ARIZONA PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNI INCOME FUND CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, )
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
INSURED CALIFORNIA PORTFOLIO, INC,, )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
INSURED NATIONAL PORTFQLIQ, INC., )
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND )
FLORIDA PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN )
MUNIINCOME FUND MASSACHUSETTS )
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PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND MICHIGAN PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
MINNESOTA PORTFOLIO, INC.,
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND NEW
JERSEY PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND NEW YORK PORTFOLIO,
INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI INCOME FUND
OHIO PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
MUNI INCOME FUND PENNSYLVANIA ,
PORTFOLIO, INC., ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN MUNI
INCOME FUND VIRGINIA PORTFOLIO, INC.
(collectively known as “ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN
REGISTRANTS”); ALLIANCE CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT HOLDING L.P.; ALLIANCE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT L.P.; ALLIANCE CAPITAL ).
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION; AXA FINANCIAL, )

Pl N L A A W NP g W L WL N N S

INC.; GERALD MALONE,; CHARLES SCHAFFRAN; ) -
EDWARD J. STERN; CANARY CAPITAL PARTNERS, ) ,z)W o™
LLC; CANARY INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC; ) A
CANARY CAPITAL PARTNERS, LTD.; and JOEN )
DOES 1-100, )

)

Defendants. )
)
X

PIéintiff alleggs the following based upon the investigation of plaintiff’s counsel, which
included éreview of United States Securities and Exchange Comxﬁission (“SEC™) filings as well
as 6ther regulatory filings and reports and advisories about the AllianceBemstein Funds (as
~ defined in the capvtion of this case, above), press releasés, and media reports about the
AllianceBemstein Funds. Plaintiff believes that substantial additional evidentiary support will
exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportuniiy for discovery. :

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal class action on behalf of a class consisting of all persons other
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than defendants who purchased or otherwise acquired shares or other ownefship units of one or
more of tlie mutual funds in the Allian'ceBemst‘ein fam‘ily of funds (i.e. the AllianceBernsteiﬁ
Funds as deﬁned, in the caption above) between October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003,
inclusive, and who were danlagéd thereby (the “Class”). Plaintiff seeks to pursue remedies u.nder
the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act’), the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the
“Exchange Act”), and the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (the “Investment Advisers Act”).

2. This ﬁction charges defendants with engaging in aﬁ unlawful and deceitful course
of conduct designed to improperly ﬁnaﬁcial]y advaﬁtage defendants to the detriment of plaintiff
and the other members of the Class. As part and parcel of defendants’ unlawful éonduct; the
Fund Defendants, as deﬁned below, in clear contre.iventivon of their ﬁduéiary responsibilities and
disclosure obligations, failed fo properly disclose:’

(a) That select favored customers were allowed to engage in il].egal"‘late

trading,” a practice, more fully described herein, whereby an investor may place an order to -

purchase fund shares after 4:00 p.m. and have that order filled at that day’s closing net asset
value; and

(b)  That select favored cuétoxﬁ.ers ‘were improperly éllowed to “time"’ their
m‘utual fund trades. Such timing, as more fully described herein, improperly allows an investor
to trade in and out of a mutual fund and to exploit short-term moves and inefficiencies in the
manner n whi.cil the inutua.l funds price their shﬁcs.

3. On September 30, 2003, before the market opéned, A].li.anc¢ Capital Management,

LP. issued a press 1‘e]ease revealing that it had been,éontacbted by the Secun’ti‘es and Exchange

Commission and the New York State Attomey General’s Office in connection with the

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance BernsteiniSeybold Complaint.wpd
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regulators’ investigation of the mutual fund industry’s practices of late trading and market
timing. Alliancé CapitalrManagemcnt anhdunced that as a resuit of its own internal
investigation, It had identified conflicts of interests with respect to market timing transactions,
leading to ihe suspension of defendant Gerald Ma]oné, a portfolio manager of certain
AllianceBemstein Funds and defendant Charles Schaffran, an executive salesperson of Alliance
hedge funds, | |
4, Subsequently, on October 1, 2003, The Walf Street Journal reported that
defendants Malone and Schaffran allowed certain investors to make fapid trades in
AllianceBernstéih Funds that were managed by Mal_one, in exchange for large investments in
certain Alliance ia.edge funds also managed by Méloné. ‘Moreover, the artic1¢ stated that
accordingvto documents pfodﬁced by Alliance Capital Management pursuvant to a subpoena by
the Aitomey General’s Office, defendant Ed‘ward Stemn pfaced the‘ Iafe tradés through Bank of
America for cez’zain AllianceBemstein Funds. Bank of America has been named as a defendant
in numerous recently filed gcfions concerning its alleged p"cxrticipaﬁon. in é wrongful and illegal
~scheme which allowed the Canary Defendants, defined herein, to enga‘ge in late trading and
market timing in mutual fund farﬁiliés, including Janus, One Group, Snbllg, and Nations funds.”
. As aresult of defendants’ wrongful and illegal .Misco11duct in AllianceBernstein Funds, plaintiff
and'members of the Class suffered damages.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
5. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject inaﬂer of this action pursuant to § 27
| ofthe‘ Exchange _Act of 1934 (15US.C. § 78aé); Section 22 of the Securities‘Act (15 US.C.

§ 77v); Section 80b-14 of the Investment Advisers Act (15 U.S.C. § 80b-14); and 28 U.S.C.

C:\WMutval Funds - Abiance Bernstein\Seybold Complaint.wpd
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§§ 1331, 1337,

6. Many of the acts charged herein, including the preparation and dissemination of
méteriahy false and misleading information, occurred 'm substantial part in this District. |
Defen.danté Conductéd oﬂ1er substan.tiai business within this District and many Class members
reside within this District. Defendants Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P., Alliance

Capital Management L.P., Alliance Capital Management Corporation; and AXA Finanéial, Inc.
maintain offices in this District.

7. In porﬁa.eptiqn ‘With the acts alleged in this cordplaint, defendants, directly or
indirectly, used the frmans and iljstrumentaliti es of fntez‘state éommerce, meluding, but not.
limited to, the mails, interstate telephone communications and the facilities of the national
secui’iti es markets. |

7 PARTIES

8. Plaintiff MARLENE SEYBOLD, as set forth in her ceﬂiﬁéation, which is
at‘ta‘ched hereto and incofporated by reference b erein, purchased units of the AllianceBernstein |
P'remier Growth Fund during the Clgss Period and has been damaged thereby.

9. The AIIiénceBemstvein‘, Prerxﬁer Growth Fund is among the AllianceBe.nasfeiﬁ
Funds as defined in the caption above.

" 10.  Bach of the AllianceBemstein Funds, imluding the AlliaﬁceBemstein Premié.r
Growth Fund are mutual funds that are regulated by the Investment Company Actof 1940, that
are managed by defendaﬁt Alliance Capital Management L.P., ahd that buy, hold, and sell shares
orvoth,er ownership units that are subject to the misﬁo;uiuct alleged in this complaint.

11. Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. (“Alliance Holding™) is a publicly-

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance Bernsteim\Seyboid Complaint.wpd
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traded holding company which provides i,11§estment management services through defendant
Alliance Capital Management L.P, ‘(“‘All.iance Capital Management”). Alliance Holding is
incorporated in Delaware with its principal place of business located at 1345 Avenue of the
Americas, New York, New York 10105, AIIiancé Holdiﬁg is the ultimate parent of the
'AilianceBemétein Funds and the parent company of, and controls Alliance Capital Management
and the AllianceBemstein Registrants. As of March 31, 2003, Alliance Holding owned |
approximately'30.7 percent of the outstanding sljares of Alliance Capital Management.

12, Defendant Alliance Capital Management is registered as an investment ad;»fiser -
under the In.vestmént A&visers Act and managed and advised the AllianceBemstein Funds
throughout ﬁ]e Class Period. During this period, Alliance Capital Management had ultimate
1'esp01lsi5ility for overseeing the day-to~da.y management of the AllianceBermnstein Funds.
‘Alliance Capita] Management is located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York
10105. | |

13. Defendant Allian ée Capital Management Cbrporation (“Alliaﬁce Corporatién”) 18
a wholly-owned subsidiary of defendant AXA Fj.nan.éial, Tne. (“AXA”), and the general partner
of defendénts Alliance Holding and Alliance Capital Management. Alliance Corporation owas
100,000 partnership units in Alliance Holding, and a 1 percent general partnership interest in
AI.Ii.an,@ Capital Management. Alliance Corpo‘rativon is located at 140 Broadway, New York, .
New York 10005. | | i

14. Defendant AXA, aunit of Europe’s second largest insurer AXA SA, is an

-international financial services organization which prdvides financial adyisory, insurance and

investment management products and services worldwide. AXA is a Delaware corporation and
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maintains 1;ts principal place of business at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New quk, New York
10104. AXA controls Alliance Capital Managemént by virtue of its general partnership interests
through Alliance Corporation and its 55.7 percent economic interest in Alliance Caiaital
Managenient as of March 31, 2003.

15, Defendants AllianceBemstein Registrants are the registfants and issuers of the
shares of the Al]ianceBemvstein' Funds, and were active participants‘in the unlawful scheme
alleged herein.

16.  Defendant Gerald Malone was at all relevant times a Senior Vice President at
Alliance Capital Management and a portfolio manager of several AllianceBemnstein Funds,
including the Alliancechstein Technology Fund, and vAlliance hedge funds, aﬁd was an active-
participant in the unlawful scheme alléged herein.

17. Defendant Charles Schaffran was at all relevﬁnt times a marketing ex.ecutiye at -
Alliance Capital Management who sold Alliance hedge funds to investors, and was an active
participant in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

.18, Alliance Holding, A]liiance Corporation, Alliz_mce Capital_MaJJagemem, AXA, the
AllianceBemstein Registrants, and the AllimceBemétein Funds ére referred to collcctivély herein
as the “Fund Defendants.” |

15. Defendént Canary Capital Partners, LLC, is a New Jersey limited liabihity
company with offices ét 400 Plaza Drive, Secéucus, Ne\.a/ Jersey. Canary Capital ‘Partuers; LLC,

was an active partic@pant in the unlawful scheme ail,eged lerein.

20.  Defendant Canary Investment Management, LLC, is a New Jersey limited liability

company, with offices at 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Investment

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance Bernsteim\Seybold Complaint.wpd
' 10




Management, LLC, was an active péﬁicipant in the unJawful scheme alleged herein. .

21.  Defendant Canary Capital Partners, Ltd., is a Bermuda limited liability company.
Canal& Capital Partners, Ltd., was an active participant in tllé"unlawful scheme alleged herein.

22. Defex1da11t Edward J. Stern (“Stem™) is a resideﬁt of New York, New York. Stern
was the manag_iug principal of Canary Capital Partners, LLC, Canary Investment Management,
LLC, and Canary Capital Partners, Ltd. aﬁd was‘v an active participant in the unylawful scheme
alleged herein.

23. Defendants Canary Capital Parmer;, LLC; Canary Capital Partners, Ltd.; Canary
Investment Management, LLC; and Stern aré collectively referred to herein as the “Canary |
Defendants.” | |

24, Thé true names and capabities of defendants sued herein as John Does | through

- 100 are other activé participants with the Fund Defendants in the widespread unlawful conduct
alleged herein whose identities have yet to be ascertained. Included amongst the John Doe
defendants are certain Alliance hedge fﬁnds that have beeﬁ feferencéd in news articles in
connection with ihe misconduct alleged herein and have vet to be identified. Such defendants

- were secretly permﬁted to exlga.ge m ilﬁpl'opel' lat.e trading and timing at the expénse of ord11aw
AllianceBemstein Funds investors, si;ch as plaintiff and the other members of the Class, in
ey'(ch:;m ge for which fhese John Doe defendants provided remuneration to the Fund Defendants.

| Plaintiff will seek to amend this cdmplamt to state the true names and capacities of said

' defen.dants‘ when they have been ascertained.

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

25.  Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil
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Procedure 23(a) and (b){3) oﬁ behalf of a Class consisting of all persons or entities who
- purchésed or otherwise acquired shares of the AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, or like
interests in Allian&Bemstein Funds, between October 2, 1998 and Septembe_r 29, 2003, |
inclusive, and who were damaged thereby. Plaintiff and each bf the Class members purchased
shares or other ownership units in A]lianceBemstsiﬁ Fund; pursuant to a registration statement
and prospectus, The registration staterﬁents and prospectuses pursuant to which plaintiff énd the
other Class members purchased their shares or of[her ownership units in the AllianceBemstein
Funds, including the AllianceBemstein Premier Growth Fund, are referr.éd. to collectively hereiﬁ
as the “Pros_p’ectuses.” Excluded from the Class are defendants, members of their immediate
families and their legal representatives, 11eirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which “
defendants have or had a controliihg interest. |

26.  The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact nuniber of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time and
can ohly be ascertained through appropriate discovery, plaintiff believes that there are thdusands
of members i‘n the proposed Class. Reéord owners and other members of the Class may be
identified ﬁom records maintained by the Alii anceBemstein Funds and m ay be notified of the
pendency of this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in
securities class actions.

27. Pvla.intifi’ s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class arebsimilarly affécted by defendants’ wrongful conduct in violation of
federal law ;that is complained of herein. | |

28. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the
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Class and has retained counsel competent and expeﬁeﬁced n c]asé and .sec.un'_ﬁes litigation.

29.  Common questions of law aud fact exist as to éll members of the Class and
- pre&ominate over any questions solely affecting :i.ndjvidual members of the Class. Amdng the
questions of law and fact »c‘ommon to the ‘C.]ass are:

(a) whethef the federa] securities Jaws weré violated by defend.énts’ acts as
alleged herein;

(b)  whether statements made by defendants to the investing public during the
Class Period nﬁsrepksented matcrial facts about the business, operations and financial
statements of the AllianceBernstein Funds; and

{c) to what extent the mémbers of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of damages.

30.‘ . Aclass action is supe‘ri’or‘ to all other available methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all member is impracticable. Furthermore, as
the damages suffered by individual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and
burden of individual litigation make it ‘virtually impossible for members of the Class to ,
individually redress the wrongé done to them. There will be no difﬁcﬁlty in the management of
this action as a class ‘acti_or.l.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

Introduction: The Double Standard for Privileged Investors

31, Mutual funds, including the AllianceBemnstein Funds, are meant to be long-term
investments and are therefore the favored savings vehicles for many Asmericans’ retirement and

collége funds. The AllianceBernstein Funds were no exception; the AllianceBernstein Funds’
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website states: “A little planning goes a long way. Whatever your lqng—zernt goal, we can help
you begin to plan a savings strategy. 1f your goal is listed bei_ow, let us show you how. Iwﬁnt
td invest for a comfortable retirement. I'm saving for a collv’ege education. }’m saving toward a
dream purchase.” [Erﬁphasis added.]
32. However, unbeknownst to investors, from at least as early as October 2, 1998 and
until September 29, 2003, inclusive, defendants engaged in fraudulent and wrongful schemes that
‘enabled certain favored investors t§ reap many mill;’ons of dollars in profit, at the expense of the
AliianceBemstein Funds’ p]_ai.nti‘ff and other mcm.be:rs of the Class, through secret and illegal
timed trading. In exchange for allowing and facilitating this improper conduct, the Fund
Defendants received substantial fees énd other remuneration for the1nsélyes and their afﬁliéteé ‘to
the detriment bf plaintiff and the other members of the Class who knew ndth‘ing of these illicit’
arrangements. Specifically, Alliance Capital Management, as manager of the AllianceBemstein
Funds, and each Qf the relevant fund managers, profited frombfe‘:es Alliance Capital Managemeﬁt
charged to the AllianceBemstcin Funds that were measured as a percentage of the fees under
management. In exchange for the right to engage in timing, which hurt pléintiff and other Class
members, by artificially .and. materially affecting the vaiue of the All_i.anceBemstein Funds,.thc
' Canary_Defendanis, and the John Doc Defendants, agreed to patk substantialk assets in the Funds‘,
thereby increbasing the assets under A].lianceBemstein_ F u.l/vlds’ management and the fees paid to
AllianceBemstein Funds’ managers. The assets parked in the AllianceBemnstein Funds in
exchange for thé right to engage in timing have been referred to as “sticky assets.” F urthermofe,
the Canary Defendants secretly disguised additional, improper compensatbn to the Fund

- Defendants as interest payments on monies loaned by the Fund Defendants to the Canary . E
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Defendants _fof the purpose of financing the‘illegal ‘scheme. The synergy between the Fund
Defendants"and thé Canéry Défendants hinged on ordinary in_\}estors’ misplaced trust in the
integrity of mutual fuﬁd companies and allowedb defendants to profit haﬁdsomely\at the expense
of plainti ff and other membefé of the Class. |
Illegal Late Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and the Other Members of the Class

|33, “Late trading” exploits the unique ’way‘in which mutual funds, including the
AllianceBernstein Fuﬁds, set their prices. The daily price ‘of mutual fund shares is generally
calcﬁlated once a day as of 4:00 p.m. EST. The pﬁce, known as the “Net Asset Value” or
“NAV,” generél]y reﬂecfs the closing prices of the securities that comprise a given fund’s |
portfolio, pius the value of any cash that the fund manager maintains for the ﬁmd. Orders to buy,
sell or exchémge mutual fund 'shar,es placed at or before 4:00 p'.Am. EST on a given day receive
thai day’s price. Orders placed after 4:00 p.m. EST are supposed to be filled usin g the followz’r).g
day'’s price. Unbeknownst to plaiutiff and other m‘embers‘of the Class, in violation‘of SEC
regu]ativons, the Canary Defendants, and the John Doe Defendants; sécfetly agreed with‘the Fund
Defendants thatrorders they placed afte; 4:00 p.m. on a given day would illegélly receive that
day’s price (as opposed to,thev ne%t day’s price, which the order would 'hagle received had it been
processed lawfuliy). This il‘legal conduct al'l_owed the Canary Defendants, and the John Doe
Defendants, to capitalize 611 market-moving financial and other ‘infomlaﬁon that was made public
after the close of trading at 4:00 p.m. while pl‘aintiff and other members 61’ the Clasé, who bought
their AllianceBemstein Funds® shares lawfully, could not.

34.  Hereis an illustration of how the favored treatment accorded to the Canary

Defendants took money, dollar-for-dollar, out of the podcets of ordinary AllianceBernstein
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| Funds’ investors, such as plaintiff and the other members of the‘Class: A mutﬁal fund’s sha.fe
price Is determiﬁed to be §10 per share for a given day. After 4:00 p.m., good news concerning
the fund’s cbnstituent securities may have been made public, causing the price of the fund’s
- underlying securities fo rise mate;i ally aﬁd, correspondingly, causing thé next day’s NAV to rise
and increasing the fund share price to $15. Under this example, ordinary investors pléqing an
order t;) buy a&e;f 4:00 p.m. on the day the news came out unid have their orders filled at $15,
_the next day’s price. Defendants’ scheme alloWed the Canary Defendants, and other favored
in.vestofs named herein, to purchase fund shares at the pre-4:00 p.n. price of $10 per share price
even after the post-4:00 p.m. news calné out and the market had already started to move upwards.
| These favored investors were therefore guaranteed a $5 per share profit by buying after the |
market had closed at the lower price, available only to them, and then sehing the sh_ares‘ the next
day at the higher price. Becaus‘e ~a11.shares sold Ey investors are bought by the respective fund, -
which must sell shares or use available cash for the purchase, Canary’s profit.of §5 per unit
pomés, dollar-for-dollar, directly from th¢ oﬂler fund investors. This harmful practice, which
damaged i;)laintiff and other membéré of the Class, is ciomp‘letely undisclosed in the Prospectuses |
by whi‘ch' the AllianceBernstein Funds were marketed aﬁd sold and pufsuant to Whidl plamtiff
and the other Class mémbers purchased their Aliian.céBemstein Fund sécurities. Moreover, late
trading is spe'cific.ally prohibited by the ‘;forward pricing rule” embodied in SEC regulations. See

17 C.F.R. § 270.22¢-1(a).

- Secret Timed Trading at the Expense of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class
35, “Timing” is an arbitrage strategy involving short-term trading that can be used to
- profit from mutual funds’ use of “stale” prices to calculate the value of securities held in the
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funds’ porifcﬁio. These prices are “s.{ale” because they do not necessarily refiect the “fair value”
of such securities as of the time the NAV is calculated. A fypiéa& éxampl.e is 2 U.S. mutual fund -
" that holds Japanese securities. Because of the time zone difference, the Japanese market may

A close at 2 a.m. New York time. If the U.S. mutual fund manager usés the closing pﬁces of the
Japanese securities in his or her, fund to arrive at an NAV at 4 p.m. in New York, he or she is
relying on market information thét is fourteen hours 6](1. If there has been positive market moves
during the New York trading day that will cause the J apénese market to rise when it later opens,
the stale Japanese pl_-ices will ndt reﬂect that i.ncreasé, and‘the fund’s NAV will be artificially

low. Put énqther way, the NAV would not reflect the true current market value of the stocks the
fund holds. This and similar strategies are known as “time zone arbitrage.” |

36, A similar type of timing is possible in mumalvfunds that contain illiquid securities
such as higﬁ-yield bounds or small capitalization stocks. Here, the fact that some of the
AllianceBernstein FLU:ldS’ underliﬁg securities may not ha%ze traded for hours before the New
York closing time can render the fund’s NAV stale and th.us be susceptible to being timed. This
is sométimes known as “liquidity arbitrage.”

37, Like late trading, effective timing captures an arbitrage profit. And like late
trading, arbitrage profit from timing comes dollar-for-dollar out of the pockets of the long-term
i_hvestors: the ﬁm_er steps invat the last moment and tak_es pait of the Euy—and-hold investors’
upside when the market goes up, so the next day’slNAV is i'educed for thdse who are still in the
fund. If the timer sells short on bad days — as Canary also did — the arbitrage has the effect of
makiﬁg the next day’s NAV Jower that it would otherwise havé béen, thué 1ﬁagnifying the losses

that investors are experiencing in a declining market.
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38, Besides the Wealth transfer of arbiti'age (called “dilutio_n’.’); ﬁmer‘s also harm their

target funds in 2 number of other ways. They impose their transaction costs on the fong-tezm .
invéstors. Trades necessitated by timer redemptions can also result in the realization of taxable
capital gains at an undesirable time, or may result in managers having to sell stock into a falling
market.

| 39. It is widely acknowledged that timing inures to the détriment of Jong-term mutual
fund shareholders and, because of this dg:tri,memal effect, the Prospectuses stated that timing is
movitored and that the F und Defendants work to prevent it. These statements were materjally
false and misleading because, not only did_thé Fund Defendants allow the Canary and John Doe
Defendants to time their trades, but, in the case éf the Canary Defendants, they also provided a
.f;adin g platform, provided the Cangry Defendants proprietary information about the stocks held
in the AllianceBernstein Funds, financed the timing arbitrage strategy and sought to profit and | ,

did profit from it.

Defendants’ Frandulen Scheme

| - 40.  On ‘S‘eptember 3, 2003, New York Attorney General Eliot Spitzer filed a
complaint qharging fraud, amongst other violations of law, in connection with the unlawful
. practices alleged herein and exposing the fraudulent and manipulaﬁve practices charged her¢
with the particularity that had resulted from a confidential full-scale investigation (the “Spitzer
Complaint”). The Spitzer Complaint alleged, with regard to the 1ﬁisconduct élleged herein, as
follows: |

Canary engage.:d' in late trading on a daily basis from in or about March 2000 until

this office began its investigation in July of 2003. It targeted dozens of mutual
funds and extracted tens of millions of dollars from them. During the declining
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market of 2001 and 2002, it used late trading to, in effect sell mutual fund shares
short. This caused the mutual funds to overpay for their shares as the market went
down, serving to magnify long-term investors’ losses. [...] |

[Bank of America] (1) set Canary up with a state-of-the-art electronic trading
platform [. . .] (2) gave Canary permission to time its own mutual fund family, the
“Nations Funds,” (3) provided Canary with approximately $300 million of credit
to finance this late trading and timing, and (4) sold Canary derivative short
positions it needed to time the funds as the market dropped. In the process,
Canary became one of Bank of America’s largest customers. The relationship
was mutually beneficial; Canary made tens of millions through Jate trading and
timing, while the various parts of the Bank of America that serviced Canary made
raillions themselves. -

41.  According to mutual fund orders and other records obtained by the Attomey
General’s Office, the Cématy Defendants used an AllianceBernstein Fund for its late trading and
market timing practices. According to the records, Canary sold shares of Alliance Growth &

Income Fund and invested the proccedvs in an Alliance money market fund in a late trade

submitted at 6:31 p.m. on January 13, 2003.

42.  On September 4, 2003, The Wall Street Journal published a front page story about
the Spitzer Comblaint under the headline: “Spitzer Kicks Off Fund Probe With a $40 Million |
Settlement,” in which the New Y§1‘1< Attorney General compared after-the-close trading to “being
al]owéd to bet on a horse race after the race was over,” a.nd which indicated that the fraudulent |
practices en.umérated in the Spitzer Complaint were just the tip of the icebérg. In this regard, the
article stated: | | |

[.. ] “The late trader,” he said, “is be_ing‘ allowed into the fund
after it has closed for the day to participate in a profit that would

- otherwise have gene completely to the fund’s buy-and-hold -
investors.”. '

In a statement, Mr. Spitzer said “the full extent of this
complicated fraud is not yet known,” but he asserted that “the
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mutual-fund industry operates on a double standard” in which
certain traders “have been given the opportunity to manipulate
the system. They make illegal after-hours trades and improperly
exploit market swings.in ways that harm ordinary long-tern
investors.” : : :
For such long-term investors, tapid trading in and out of funds
raises trading costs and lowers returns; one study published last
year estimated that such strategies cost long-term investors §5
billion a year. ’ '
The practice of placing late trades, which Mr. Stern was accused of
at Bank of America, also hurts Jong-term shareholders because it
dilutes their gains, allowing latecomers to take advantage of events
after the markets closed that were likely to raise or lower the funds’
- share price. [Emphasis added.]

43, The Wall Street Journal reported that the Canary Defendants had settled the
charges against them, agreeing to pay a $10 million fine and $30 million in restitution. COn
September 5, 2003, The Wall Street Jowrnal reported that the New York Attorney General’s
Office had subpoenaed a “large number of hedge funds” and mutual funds as part of its
investigation, “underscoring concem among investors that the improper trading of mutual-fund
shares could be Widespread” and that the SEC, joining the investigation, plans to send letters to
mutual funds holding about 75% of assets und'ervmanagement in the U.S. to inquire about their
practices with respect to market-timing and fund-trading practices.

44.  On September 5, 2003, the trade publication, Morningstar réported: “Already this
is the biggest scandal to hit the industry, and it may grow. Spitzer says more companies will be
accused in the coming weeks. Thus, investors, and fund-company executives alike are looking at

.some uneasy times.”

45.  On September 30, 2003, Alliance Capital Management announced in a press
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release published over PR Newswire that the New York State Attomey General and the SEC had
contacted Alliance Capital Management in connection With the regu]atqrs’ investigation of
market timing and late trading practices in the mutual fund‘ industry. Additionally, Alliance
Capita.l: Managemem revealed the following: - |

based on the preliminary results of its own ongoing internal investigation
concerning mutual fund transactions, it has identified conflicts of interest in
connection with certain market timing transactions. In this regard, Alliance
Capital has suspended two of its employees, one of whom is a portfolio manager
of the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, and the other of whom is an

executive involved with selling Alliance Capital hedge fund products. [Emphasis
added.] '

: 46.  On October 1, 2003, an article appearing in The Wall Stréet Journal identified the

two Alliance Capital Management employees who were suspended as a result of their

involveme;nt in conflicts of intefests as defendants Gerald Malone and Charles Schaffran. The
article revealed that Alliance Capital Management had been subpoenaed by the New York State
Attorney General’s Office early on in its iﬁquiry into th‘é mutual fund industry, and further,
elﬁboratcd on defendants Meﬂone and Sc‘haffran’s wrongful and illegal misconduct:

certain invesiors were allowed to make rapid trﬁd?s ina muiuaf fuﬁd managed

by Mr. Malone in exchange for making large investments in Alliance hedge
Sfunds also run by Mr. Malonel.]

* ok 3k

Mr. Schaffran is alleged to have hé]ped 2 broker at a Las Vegas firm called
Security Brokerage Inc. gain the ability to make short-term trades in shares of Mr.
Malone’s mutual fund in exchange for investments into Mr. Malone’s hedge
funds[.] :

T

As previously reported, [defendant Edward] Stern’s firm, Canary, appears to
had arrangements allowing short-term frading with Alliance funds . . .
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Meanwhile, according to a copy of trade orders obtained by [Attorney General
Elliot] Spitzer’s office, on the evening of Jan. 13 this year, Mr. Stern placed late
trades through Bank of America’s trading system to sell 4,178,074 shares of
Alliance Growth and Income Fund, which at the time would have amounted to
an approximately fsic] $11 million transaction. [Emphasis added.]

In addition to the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, the article stated that defendant Malone
aJso managed two technology hedge funds, the ACM Technology Hedge Fund and the ACM
Technology Partners LLP.

The Prospectuses, Including the AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund Prospectus,
‘ Were Materially False and Mlsleadmo

47. Plaintiff and each member of the class were entitled to, and did receive, one of the
Prospectuses, each of which contained substanti ally the same materially false and misleading
statements regarding the AllianceBemstein Funds’ policies on late trading and timed trading, and
acquired shares pursuam to one or more of the Prospectuses.

43.  The Prospectuses contained materially false and misleading statements with
respect to how shares are priced, typically representing as follows:

How the Funds Value Their Shares

The Funds’ net asset value of NAV is calculated at 4 p.m., Eastern time, each day

the Exchange is open for business. To calculate NAV, a Fund’s assets are valued

and totaled, liabilities are subtracted, and the balance, called net assets, 1s divided

by the number of shares outstanding. The Funds value their securities at their

current market value determined on the basis of market quotations, or, if such

quotations are not readily available, such other methods as the Funds’ directors

believe accurately reflect fair market value. '

49.  The Prospectuses, in explaining how orders are processed, typically represented

that orders received before the end of a business day will receive that day’s net asset value per

share, while orders received after close will receive the next business day’s price, as follows:
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Your order for purchase, sale, or exchange of shares is priced at the next NAV
calculated after your order is received in proper form by the Fund. Your |
purchase of Fund shares may be subject to an initial sales charge. Sales of Fund -
shares may be subject to a contingent deferred sales charge or CDSC.

ok % %

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

You may exchange your Fund shares for shares of the same class of other Alliance
Mutual Funds (including AFD Exchange Reserves, a money market fund
managed by Alliance). Exchanges of shares are made at the next determined
NAV, without sales or service charges. You may request an exchange by mail or
telephone. You must call by 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, to receive that day’s NAV.
The Funds may modify, restrict, or terminate the exchange service on 60 days’

. written notice.

HOW TO SELL SHARES

You may “redeem” your shares (i.e., sell your shares to a Fund) on any day the

" Exchange is open, either directly or through your financial intermediary. Your
sales price will be the next-determined NAV, less any applicable CDSC, after the
Fund receives your sales request in proper form. Normally, proceeds will be sent
to you within 7 days. If you recently purchased your shares by check or electronic
funds transfer, your redemption payment may be delayed until the Fund is
reasonably satisfied that the check or electronic funds transfer has been collected
(which may take up to 15 days). [Emphasis added.]

50.  The Prospectuses falsely stated that Alliance Capital Managerment actively
safeguards shareholders from the harmful effects of timing. For example, in language that
typically appeared in the Prospectuses, the March 31, 2003 AllianceBemstein Premier Growth
" Fund Prospectus stated as follows:

A Fund may refuse any order to purchase shares. In particular, the Funds, reserve
the right to restrict purchases of shares {including through exchanges) when they
appear to evidence a pattern of frequent purchases and sales made in response to

short-term considerations.

In an effort to discourage frequent frading, mutual funds may impose a
redemption fee if shares are sold or exchanged within a prescribed time.
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51.  The Prospectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented the following material and
| adverse facts which damaged plaflltiff and the othér members of the C_]ass: |

(a) : that defenaants had entered into an agreement allowing the Canary
Defendants and the John Dée Defe_ndah_ts to time their trading Qf fhe AllianceBemstein Fﬁnds
shares énd to “late trade”;

(b) | that, pursuant to that agreement, Canaly and other favored investors
regularly timed and late-traded the AllianceBernstein Funds sh.ares;

(¢}  that, contrary to the express representations in the Prospectuses, the
AllianceBemstein Funds enforcéd their policy against frequent traders selectively, ie., they did
not enforce it against the Canary Defendants and ‘the John Doe Defendants and'they waived the
fedemption fee_s that thése defendants‘_‘shoul,d have been required to ﬁay pursuant to stated
AllianceBernstein Funds’ poIicies;‘ ’

(d)  that thg.Fund Defendants fegu]_ar]}r allowed Canary and other favored
mvestors to engage in trades that were disruptive fo the efficient management of the |
AlliaﬁceBemstein Funds and/or increased the AllianceBemnstein Funds’ costs and thereby
réduced the AllianceBemstein Funds’ actliall performance; and

(e) that the amount of ‘compensati oﬁ paid by the A]liahceBemstein Funds to
Alliance C'apital Maria'genient, bgcause of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ secret agreemenf with
Canary and otheré, f)rovided substantial additional undisclosed compensation to Alliance Capital
Management by the AllianceBemstein Funds and their respective shareholders, including
plaintiff énd othér mem.bers of the Class.

. Defendants’ Scheme and Frandulent Course of Business
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52.  Each defendant 1s liable for (i) making false statements, or‘ for failing to disclose
adverse facts in connection with the purchase or sale of shares of the AilianceBemstein Funds,
and/or (ii) participating in a scheme to defraud and/or a course of business that operated as a
fraud or deceit 6n purchasers of the‘ AIIianceBemstéin Funds shares during the Class Period (the
“Wrongful Conduct”). This Wrongful Conduct enabled defendants o profit at the expense of
plaintiff and thebother Class members. |

Additional Scienter Allegations

53, As alleged'herein, defendants acted wiﬂi Scienter in that defendants 1me;\i that the
public documents and staterﬁents issued or dissenii.riated in the néme of the AllianceBemstein
Funds were matéﬁally false and mislez‘tding; knew that such statements or documents would be
issued or disseminated to the investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or
acquies‘ced. in the issuance or dissemination of such statements or documents as primary
violations of the federal securities laws. Defendants, by virtue of their receipt of information
reflecting ‘the true fapts regardil.lgAlliaﬂceBemstein Funds, their control over, and/or receipt -
and/or modification of AllianceBemstein Funds’ a]legedly‘materially misleading miéstatements
and/or their associations wich the AllianceBemstein Fundé which fnade them privy to
confidential proprietary infbrmation concerning the AllianceB emnstein Funds, participated in the
- fraudulent scheme ai] eged h.efeinA

54, Additionally, the Fund Defendants and the Fund Individual Dgefendants were
highly motivated to allow and facilitate the wroﬁgful conduct alleged herein and participated in
and/df had actual knowledge of the ﬁ'au.du]ént conduct alleged heréin. .In exchange for allowing

the unlawful practices alleged herein, the Fund Defendants and Fund Individual Defendants
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received, among other things, increased management fees from “sticky assets” and other hidden
compensation paid in the form of inflated interest payments on loans to the Canary and John Doe
Defendants.

VIOLATIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT

FIRST CLAIM

~ Against The AllianceBernstein Registrants For Vnolatnons
of Sectnon 11 Of The Securutlee Act

- 55. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein, except that, for purposes of this claim, p}aintiff expre%s)y excludes and di sclaims
any allegation that could be coﬁstmed as alleging fraud or intentional or réckless miscoﬁduct and
otherwise incofporates the allegations contained above.

'56.  This claim is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Sééurities Act, 15 U.S.C.§7;/k,
on behalf of the plaintiff and other mcmbgrs of fhé Class against the AllianceBemstein |
' Registrams. _

57.  The AllianceBernstein Registrants are the registrants for_ the fund shares sold to
plaintiff and the other members of the Class and ar—e statutorily liable under Section 11. The
AllianceBemstein Registrants issued, caused to be issued, and participated in the issuance of the
materially false émd misleading written staterhenis and/or omissions of material facts th_at‘were
cbntéxined in the Prospectuses.

58.  Plaintiff was provided with the AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund
Prospectus and, similarly, prior to pu'rchasing‘ units of each of the other AllianceBernstein Funds,

all Class members likewise received the appropriate prospectus. Plaintiff and other Class

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance Bemstcim\Seybold Complaint.wpd

26




members puréhased shares of the AllianceBernstein Funds pursuant to or tfaceable to the relevant
false and misleading Prospectuses and were vdamaged t‘nefeby.

59. Asset forth herein, the statements contained in the Prospectuses, when ‘they
becﬁme effective, were materially false and misleading for a number of reasons, inéluding that
they stated that it was the practice of the Alli.ancechstéi.n Funds to monitor and take steps to
prevent timed trading because of its adverse éffect on fund investors, aﬁd_ that the ;Lrading price
was detemvn'ned as of 4 p.m. each trading day with vrespect to all investors when, in fact, Canary
and other select investors (the John Does named as defendants herein) were allowed to engage in
timed trading and late-_trade at the previous days’s price. The P:ro.spectuscs failed to disclose and
misrepresented, inter alia, tile following material and adverse facts:

(a) that defendants h_ad eﬁtered into an ﬁnlaﬁvfui agreement alllowing Canary to
time its trading of the Alliance;Bemstein Funds shares and to “late trade;”

(b) that, pursuant to that agreement, Canary regulafly timed and late-traded the
Allianf:eBemstgin Funds shares;

©) that, contrary to the express representations vi'n th¢ Prospéctuses, the
A]_]ianceBemstcin Funds enforced their policy against frequent traders and late trading
selectively, i.e., they did not enforce it against Canary; .

(d) that the Fund Defendants regularly allowed Canary to engage in trades that
were disruptive fo the efficient management of the AllianceBemstein Funds :and/vor increased the
AlﬁanceBemstein Funds’ c.osts azﬁd thereby reduced the AllianceBernstein Funds’ a‘ctual
performance_; and . |

| ('?) - the Prospectuses failed to disclose that, pursuant to the unlawful
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agreements, the Fund‘Deféndants, C an,éry Defendants and John Doe Defendants benefitted
financially at the expense of the AllianceBernstein Funds investors‘including piaiﬁt.iff and the

other members of the Class.

60. At the time they p,urchaséd the AllianceBemstein F uﬁds shares traceable to the
defective Prospectuses, p]ain'tj ff and Class members were without knowledge of the facts
conceming the false and misleading statements or omissions alleged herein and could not
reasonably have possessed such knowledge. This claim was brought willﬁn the applicable statute

‘of limitations. -

SECOND CLAIM

Against Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
' and AXA as Control Persons of the AllianceBernstein Registrants
For Violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act

61.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and eveljr aﬂegation. contained above, except |
that for purposes of this claim, plaintiff expressly excludes and disclaims any allegation that
could bé construed as allegh;g fraud or intentional re;:kless misconduct and otherwise
incorporates the éllegations contained above. |

62.  This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Act against
Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation,. Alliance Capital Managément, and AXA, eaéﬁ asa
control ﬁerson of the AllianceBemstein Registrants. It is appropriate to treat these d.efendan'ts as
' -a group for pleading pﬁrposes and to presume that the falsg, misleading, and incomplete
information colnveyéd in the AllianceBernstein Funds’ public ﬁlingé, presﬁ releases and other
publications are the collccﬁ\}e actions of Alliance Holding, Alliaﬁce Corporation, Alliance

Capital Management, and AXA.
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63.  The AllianceBemstein Régistrants are liable under Section 11 of th.e Securities
Act as set fbrth herein. |

64,  Eachof Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
and AXA was a “control person” of the AlIianceBerdstein Registrzints within the meaning of
Section 15 of the Securities Act, by virtue of its position of operational control and/or ownership.
At the time plaintiff and other members of .the Class purchaséd shafes of AllianceBemstein
f‘unds - by Qirtue of their positions of control and auﬂ1ority over the AllianceBernstein
Registrants — Alliance Holding, Alliénce Corporation, Allia‘ncc. C.apital Management,vand AXA,
directly and indirect}y, had the powerr and authority, and exercised the safne, to cause the
AllianceBemstein Registrants to engage in the wrohgful. conduct complafned of herein. Alliance
Holding, Alliance Coxporation, Alliance Capital Management,‘ and AXA issued, caused to be
issued, and participated in the issuance of materially false and misleading statemellté in the
Prospectuses.

65. | Pﬁrsuani to Section 15 of the Securities Act, by reason of the fo1egomg Alhance
Holdmg. A]hance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA are liable to plaintiff
and the other members of the Class for the AllianceBernstein Registrants’ pnmary vxolauons of
Sect_ioh 11 of the. Securities Act. | |

66. By virtue of the foregoing, plaintiff and other members of the Class are entitled to
danﬂages against A]]iance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and

AXA.
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VIOLATIONS OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

APPLICABILITY OF THE PRESUMPTION OF RELIANCE:
FRAUD-ON-THE-MARKET DOCTRINE

67. Atall releva‘nt‘times, the market for AllianceBernstein Funds was an efficient
markét Ifor the following reasons, among others:
(2) The AllianceBemstein Funds met the requirements for listing, and were
listed and actively bough; and sold through a highly efficient and automated n:narkct;
(b) As regulated entities, periodic public reports conceming the
AllianceBemstein Funds were regularly filed with the SEC; |
(c) ~ Persons associated with the AllianceBemstein .Fu‘nds regularly
communicated with pubiic invcstdrs via established market communication mechanisms,
including through regular disseminations of press releases on the national circuits of major
newswire services ah_d through other wide-ranging public disclosures, such as communications
with thla financial press and other similar reporting services; and
(d The AlliandeBemstein Funds were followed by several securities analysts
employed by major Brokerage firms who wrote reports which were distn'buted to the sales force
and certain customers of their réspective brokérage firms. Each of these reports was publicly
available and eﬁiered the pu.blic marketplace. |
68.  Asaresult of the foregoing, the market for tﬁe AllianceBemsteiﬁ Funds pl'omptly
digested current information regarding AllianceBernstein Funds from all publicly available
sources and reflected such information in the respective AllianceBemstein Funds” NAV.

Investors who purchased or otherwise acquired shares or interests in the AllianceBernstein Funds
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relied on tﬁe integ,rity of the market for such securities. Under these circumstances, all
purchasers of the AllianceBernstein Funds during‘thev Class Period suffered similar injury
through their purchase orécquié.i tion of AllianceBernstein Fuuds securities at distorted prices
that did not r‘eﬂect the risks and costs of the lcontinuing course of conduct alleged herein, and a
presumption_ 6f reliance applies.

THIRD CLAIM

Violation Of Section 10(b) Of
The Exchange Act Against And Rule 10b-5
Promulgated Thereunder Against All Defendants

69.  Plaintiff repeats aﬁd realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Act.

70.  During the Class Period, each‘of the defendants cazﬁ'ed out a plan, scheme and
course of c‘onduct which was intended to and, throughout the Class Period, did deceive the
investing public, including plaintiff and-the other Class members, as alleged herein and cause
plaintiff and otﬁer mémbers of the Class to purchase AllianceBemstein Funds shares or interests
at djstortéd prices and otherwise suffered damages. In furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan
‘ and-qourée ﬁf conduct, defendants, and each of them, took the actions set forth herein.

71. Defendants (1) employed devices, schemes, and ax’ciﬁces to defraud; (it) made
untrue statément’s of material fact and/or omitted to state material facts necessary to make the
staternents not misleading; and (iii) engaged in acfs, pra.ctices, and a course of _busi_néss which
operated as a fraud and deceit upon the purcha;ers of the AllianceBernstein Funds’ securities,

- including plaintiff and other members of the Class, in an effort tb enrichvthemselve‘s through

undisclosed manipulative trading tactics by which they wrongfully appropriated
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AllianceBemstein Funds’ assets aﬁd otherwise distorted the pficing of their securities in violation
of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5, All defendants are sued as primary
participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct and scheme ‘charged h¢1‘ein.

72.  Defendants, individually and in concert, directly and indirectly, by the use, means
- or instmmentaljties of in.terstaie commerce and/or of the mails, engaged and pmiciﬁated ina
continﬁous course of conduct to conceal adverse mat_erial‘ information about the
AllianceBemstein‘Funds’ ‘oper’a.tions, as specified herein.

, -73. These defendants employed devices, schemes and artifices to défraud and a course
of conduct and scheme as éllegcd herein to unlawfully manipulate and proﬁf from secretly timed
trading and thereby engaged ﬁl transactions, practicés and a course of business which operated as
a fraud and deceit upon plaintiff and meinbefs of the Clasé.

74.  The defendants had actual knowledge of the 1ﬁisreprese1itati0ns and omissions of
material facts set forth herein, or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that they failed to
ascertain aud to disclose suéh facts, evén though such facts were available to them. Such
defendanfs’ material misrepresentations and/or omissions were»done knowingly or fecldessly and
for the purﬁose_ and effect of concealing the th.

- 75. As aresult of the dissemination of the materially false and 1hjs,leading information
and féi.lure to di:sclosc material facts, as set forth aﬁove, the market price of the AllianceBerﬁstein
Funds securities were distorted durin g.'the Class Period such that the'y did not reflect the risks and
costs of the cgntinﬁing course of conduct al,léged herein. m ignorance of these facts that market
prices of the shares werev distorted, and relying directly or indirectly on the false and misleading

statements made by the Fund Defendants, or upon the integrity of the market in which the

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance Bernstein\Seybold Complaint wpd




secutities trade, and/or on the absence of material adverse information that was known to or
recklessly disregarde;d by defendants but not disclosed in pﬁb‘lic statements by defendants during
the Class Period, p]ajnti ff and the other members of the Class acquired the shares or inierests m
the Allia_r‘meBemstein Funds dﬁring the Class Period at distorted prices and were damaged
thereby.

76, '‘Atthe time of said misrepresentatidns and omissions, blaintiff and other ni_embers
of the Class were ignorant of their faisi.ty; and believed them to be tru\e. Had plaintiff and the
other members of the Class and thelmarketplape known of the truth concerning the |
AllianceBernstein Funds’ o‘perations; which were not disclosed by defendants, plaintiff and other
members of the Class would not have purchased or otherwise acquired their share.s or, if they had
' acquired such shares or other interests during the Class Period, they would not have done so at
the distorted prices %v.h.ich they paid.

77‘. By virtue of the erégoing, defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the
Ekchangé Acf, and Rﬁle 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. |

78.  As adirect and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, plainfiff and the
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their respective purchases and
sales of the A]vl.i'anceBer.nStein Funds shares during the Class Period.

FOURTH CLAIM

Against AXA (as a2 Control Person of Alliance Corperation); Alliance Corporation (as a
Control Person of Alliance Holding); Alliance Holding (as a Control Person of Alliance
Capital Mapagement); Alliance Capital Management (as a Control Person of
AllianceBernstein Registrants); and AllianceBernstein Registrants
(as a Control Person of the AllianceBernstein Funds)

For Violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act

C:\Mutual Funds - Alliance Bernstein\Seybold Complaint.wpd
33




79.  Plaintiff repeats aud realleges each and every allegaﬁon contained above as if fully
set forth herei?n except for Claims brought pursuant to the Securities Ac‘t. .

. 80.  This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act agafnst AXA
as a control person of Alliance Corporéti.on, Alliance Corporation és a control person of Alliance
Holding, Alliance Holding as a contro] person of Alliance Capital Management, Alliance Capital
Management as a contfol person of AllianceBernstein Registrants, and AllianceBgmstein
, Registrants as a contro] person of the All.ianceBemstein Funds,

SI . Itis abprofariate to treat these defendants aéa. group for pleading pﬁrposes and to
presume that the m.aterialiy false, mi.sleading, and incomplete information conveyed in the
AJi.iéalceBemsteill Funds’ public filings, press releases and othér publications are tﬁe collective
actions of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance ledin g, Alliance Capital Management, and
AllianceB er.nsfein Registrants.

82.  Each of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capita)
Management, and A]H anceBerv,nstein Registrants écted as controlling persons of the
AilianceBemsteiﬁ Funds within the meénin g of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the
reasoné alleged herein. By virtue of their operational and management ctontrol ofthe
| AllianceBernstein Funds’ respective businesses and systematic involvement in the fraudulent

» scheme alleged herein‘, AXA, Alliaﬁce Co‘rp‘oration, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital
Manageinent, and AlliahéeBemStein Registrants each had the power to influence and control and
did influence and control, dii’ectly or indirectly, the decision-making and actions of the
A.llianceB»emstein Funds, including the céntenﬁ and dissem‘inatiﬁn of the various statements

which plaintiff contends are false and misleading. AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance
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Holding, Alliance Capital Management, and AllianceBemstein Registrants had the abili.fy to
prevent the issﬁance‘ of the statements alleged to be falsé and 1ﬁsleadﬁ1g or cause such statements
tobe corrected. |
83.  Inparticular, each of AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Hélding, Alliance
Capital Management, and AllianceBernstein Registrants had direct and supefvisory involvement
in the-operations of the Al]ianceBemstein Funds and, therefore, is presumed 1o have Had the
‘power to control or inﬂue‘nce the particulaf transactions giving rise to the securities violations as
alleged herein, and exercised the same. |
84, As set forth ébove,A AXA, Allianqe Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance
Capital Management, and AllianceBemstein Registranfs each violated Section 10(b) and Rule |
“10b-5 By their acts and omissions as alleged in this Complaint. By virtue of their positions as
controlling persons, AXA, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Holding, Alliance Capital
Management, and AllianceBernstein Registra’mts_ are liable pursuant to Section 20(a) of the
Es(change 'Act. A‘s é djrect and proximate result of defendants’ wrongful conduct, plaintiff and
other members of the Class suffered damages in connection Wiﬂl theﬁ‘ purchases of

AllianceBemstein Fund securities during the Class Period.

FIFTH CLAIM

For Violations of Section 206 of The Investment Advisers Act of 1940
Against Alliance Capital Management [15 U.S.C. §80b-6 and 15 1].S.C. §80b-15]

85.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully

set forth herein.
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86.  This Count is based upon S‘jcct‘ion 206 of the Investment Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C.
§80b-15.

- 87. Alliance Capital Managemerit served as an “investment aciviser” to plaintiff and
other members of the Class pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act.

88. | .As a ﬁduciary pursuant to the Investment Advisers Act, Alliance Capital
Managerrient was required to serve plaintiff and other members of the Class in a manoer in
accordance with the federal ﬁ.ducigry standards set forth in Secti,bn 206 of the Investment
Advisers Act, 15 U.S.C. §80b-6, governing the co.ndﬁct of investment advisers.

89.  During the Class Period, Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary
duties owed to plaintiff and the other members of the Class by engaging in a deceptive |
contrivan‘c.e, scheme, practice and course of conduct pursuant to which it knowingly and/or
recklessly engaged in acts, transactions, praéti&s and courses of bﬁsiness which operateci asa
fraud upon plaintiff and other members of the Class. As detailed above, Alliance Capital
Management allowed thé Canary and John Doe Defendants to secretly engége in late trading and
timing of the AllianceBemstein Funds shares. The purposes and effect of said scheme, practice

and course of conduct was to enrich Alliance Capital Management, among other defendants, at

the expense of plaintiff and other members of the Class.

90.  Alliance Capital Management breached its fiduciary duty owed to plaintiff and
other Class members by engaging in the aforesaid transactions, pfactices and courses of business
knowingly or recklessly so as to constitute a deceit and fraud upon plaintiff and the Class
members.

91. Alliance Capital Management is liable as a direct partj.cipaht in the wrongs
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complained hereof. Al_l‘i'ance Capital Managexhent, becausé of its position of authority and
control over the AlliancéBemstein Registrants was able to and did: (1) control the content of the
Prospectuses; and (2) control the operations of the AllianceBemstein Funds.

92.  Alhance Capital Manag‘ement had a duty to (1) disseminate accufate and truthful
infonnation withvrespect to the AllianceBemstein Funds; and (2) truthfully and uniformly act in
accordance with its stated policies and fiduciary responsibi_lities to plaintiff and members of the |
Class. Alliance Capital Man,agement partiéipatecdlbin thé wrongdoing complained of herein in
order to prevent plaintiff and other members of the Class from knowing of Alliance Capital
Managément’s breaches of fiduciary duties including: (1) ihcreasing its proﬁtability at plaintiff’s
and other members of the Class’ expense by allowing Canary a;nd the John Doe-Defend@ts_ to
secretly time and late tréd.e the A?.lianceBemsteih Funds shares; and (2) placing its interests ahead
of the i‘nterests of plaintiff and othg—r mémbers vof the Class. .
| 93.  Asaresultof Alliance Capital Managem:ent’s multiple breaches of its fiduciary
duties owed plaintiff and othér members of the Class, plaintiff and other Class members were
damaged. | | |

94 | Plaintiff -and other Class members are entitled to rescind their investment advisory
contracts with Alliance Capital Management and reéover all fees paid in connection with their
enrollment pﬁrsuant to su.ch' égr.eem_erﬁs.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, plaintiff prayé for relief and judgment, as fo_l.lows:‘
(a) Detemilli11g that this actioﬁ isa propér class action and appointing

plaintiff as Lead Plaintiff and her counsel as Lead Counsel for the Class and certifying her as
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class represéntative under Rule 23> of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure;

- (b)  Awarding compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and other Class
members agains‘; all Idefendants, jointly and several}y, for all damages sustained as a result of
defendants’ wrongdoing, in an amount to be proven at trial, including interest thereon,

(c) ‘_ Awarding plaintiff and other members of the Class rescission of their
‘ contracts with Alliance Capital Management, including recovery of all fees which would
otherwise apply, and recovery of all fees paid to Alliance Capital Management pursuant to such
_agreements; |
(d)  Causing the Fﬁnd Defendants to account for wrongfully gotten ga@iné,
profits and compensation and to make restitution of same and disgorge them;
(e Awarding plaintiff and the Ciass their reasonable costs and expenses
incurred in this action, including counse! fees and expert fees; and
0 Such othér_ and further fel.ief as the Court may deem just anci proper.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

ted: @ '
Dated: October ’/—’ 2003 Respectfully submitted,

STULL, STULL & BRODY

Jules Brody (JB-9151)
Aaron Brody (AB-5850)
Tzivia Brody (TB-7268)
6 East 45" Street ‘
New York, New York 10017
(212) 687-7230

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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PLAINTIFE CERTIFICATION |
MARLENE.  SEY DIL ™ ____ ("Plaintiff) hereby states thal,

1+ Plainliff has ceviewad the complm’nt and -’na.s authan'xcd the filing of the comglmt on
nisMer behalf. : .
2 Pla.mu‘f did nal pwcmsc any of the securities whmb are the aub; ect of this actien t

the d \rccuon of hisher counsel or in order la participate in this private sction.

3, Plainniff is willing 10 serve 84 2 reprasmmwa parry an behalf of.a class, Lnnludmg
providing \estimony st deposition and trial, if necessacy.

4. Tha fmlovqrg includes all of Plaintiff's transactions in Mﬂnnczﬂemmm F\md
sacunties during he class periad specified in the complaini:

T A A

. RECVAITY m} IBARSLATS, PRICERZR | QUANTITY
(Namea of AlllanceBaraeteia Puad) urrdasn $ule) DX CYRITIESSHARL

Qmein Dowsl?, Mooy | eegp  Boagd]
Bee (3/201 3009 | 83237

. _
Please list other tramactlons oD 8 s:pnrn{e theet af paper, 1Inccmmry
5. Plaintiff has nol served or SOUgNt Lo garve as A TEpresentative party oa hchzlfan class

‘B\X\flﬂ the federal securitias hu-s dunng the !zst thre yoars, \niess Qt.hm::c mtadan the space
elaw; v

6. PLADKIT will nol aegepl a0y payment for serving as & mprcxemmvc party oo behalf of
3 claag except to taccive Ns pro rata shace of any recovery, of as arderad or approved by the equn
including the award to a rrprcxcntanv panty o!rcuonncg?; ¢osts And expenses mcludmg lost wage2
relating to tir representation of the class. ‘

Plainn{T declares LU)d”T perally o(or:r)urv that the foregoing 1s true and correst,

Exceuted ms%&g%day of @C»J‘tﬁ'_@ﬁz :;e . 2003, '
| MW Loploty

Tmﬁrc




